
 

1 
ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS  - SEPTEMBER 22, 2011 

TO:   THE VILLAGE PRESIDENT AND BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
 
FROM:  THE TINLEY PARK ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 
 
SUBJECT:  THE MINUTES OF THE SEPTEMBER 22, 2011 MEETING 
 
A Public Hearing was held on September 22, 2011 to consider recommending to the 
Village Board to grant a variation from Section III.I.2.C of the Tinley Park Zoning 
Ordinance to allow a 1.5 foot variation to the maximum permitted garage height of 18 
feet for the existing detached garage (total garage height of 19.5 feet) on this property in 
the R-4, Single Family Residential Zoning District and within the Parkside Subdivision.. 
 
The Meeting was called to order at 7:30 p.m. by Chairman Sam Cardella, and roll call 
was taken as follows: 

 
PRESENT: Chairman Sam Cardella and Board Members:  Ed Barta, Tom 

Hanna, and Dave Samuelson 

GUESTS: Matt Panfil – Village Planner, Ron Bruning – Zoning 
Administrator and John and Kim Grilec – 16913 Forestview Drive 
- Tinley Park, Illinois - Petitioners 

ABSENT: Board Members Pat Conway, Michael Krause, and Jerry Radecky  

OTHERS PRESENT:  Larry Canning, 6348 Scott Ct., Tinley Park            
Walter Stec, 6349 Barbara Ln., Tinley Park          
Kurt Latzko, 16919 Forestview Dr., Tinley Park                                

Chairman Cardella called for approval of the Minutes of the September 8, 2011 Meeting.  
There were no changes or corrections to the Minutes.  A Motion was made by Board 
Member Dave Samuelson, seconded by Board Member Tom Hanna, to approve the 
Minutes of the September 8, 2011 Meeting as presented.  Motion was carried by voice 
call vote. 
 
Chairman Cardella administered the Oath to those present who wished to speak 
 
Matt Panfil, Village Planner, read the Public Notice that had been published as required 
and verified. 

 
ITEM #1: 
#Z-08-11 
PUBLIC HEARING: JOHN AND KIM GRILEC – 16913 FORESTVIEW DRIVE -                                 

GARAGE HEIGHT VARIATION 
 
PETITIONER’S PRESENTATION 

 
John and Kim Grilec, 16913 Forestview Drive, were present pertaining to the above 
request.  Mr. Grilec stated that he hired a contractor to build a garage.  He was told to 



 

2 
ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS  - SEPTEMBER 22, 2011 

choose a style from the Internet, and the contractor agreed to build the garage according 
to Village Code (or no more than 17.5’ high).  His permit was granted by the Building 
Department based on the measurements submitted.   
 
During the course of construction, someone, perhaps a neighbor, called the Building 
Department to complain that the garage was too high.  At this time, a Building Inspector 
visited the property and agreed that the garage was more than 17.5’ high.  Chairman 
Cardella asked the Petitioner if he (Mr. Grilec) had spoken directly to the Building 
Inspector.  Mr. Grilec said that he had not spoken directly to the Inspector but understood 
that the Inspector had talked to the contractor and agreed to sign off on the final 
inspection.    
 
Mr. Grilec further stated that, at this time, he asked his contractor if he needed something 
in writing.  The contractor told Mr. Grilec that he did not need this in writing and that it 
was taken care of.   
 
Mr. Grilec was then under the impression that the construction would be approved.  
However, when he applied for his final inspection, he was then told that the height was 
not acceptable. 
 
Chairman Cardella asked Mr. Panfil if he had any comments or questions pertaining to 
this request.  Mr. Panfil stated that he did not, nor had he spoken to the Code 
Enforcement Officer or Building Commissioner regarding this request. 
 
BOARD MEMBER QUESTIONS/COMMENTS 
 
At this time, Chairman Cardella called for questions or comments from the Zoning Board 
Members. 
 
Board Member Dave Samuelson asked the Petitioner what he planned to store in the 
garage.  Mr. Grilec responded that he will be using the storage space for yard tools, 
Christmas decorations, etc.  He is not using it for a business.   
 
Mr. Samuelson asked the Petitioner who was listed as the general contractor on the job.  
Mr. Grilec responded that he was listed as the general contractor originally.  Mr. 
Samuelson inquired at what point Mr. Grilec discovered that the garage was too high and 
was told that it was not until someone complained to the Village and an inspector came 
out to measure. 
 
Mr. Samuelson asked Mr. Grilec if he knew of any reason why the contractor would have 
built it higher than the specifications, and Mr. Grilec said that he did not know of any 
reason. 
 
Mr. Samuelson asked if the contractor was present at this meeting.  He was not present.  
Mr. Samuelson then asked if the contractor was licensed and bonded with the Village.  
Mr Grilec responded that he was licensed and bonded. 
 



 

3 
ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS  - SEPTEMBER 22, 2011 

Mr. Samuelson asked if the garage is at least 5 feet from the property line and was told 
that it is.  He then asked Mr. Grilec if he was aware of any neighbors who had garages 
higher than the height allowed by Code.  Mr. Grilec was not aware of any such garages. 
 
Mrs. Grilec noted that they believe the contractor may have been inexperienced and, 
therefore, they are asking for forgiveness since they did not intend for the garage to be 
built to this height.  Mrs. Grilec also stated that none of her neighbors have expressed 
objections to them and that the neighbors are happy they tore down their old garage.   
 
Mr. Samuelson asked Mr. Grilec if the garage is heated.  Mr. Grilec answered that it is 
not.   
 
Zoning Administrator Ron Bruning wished to note that, in regard to the Fire 
Department’s concern that the garage might exceed the stated footprint, he and the 
Building Commissioner were out to the property to measure, and the footprint is exactly 
as stated.   
 
Board Member Hanna again asked the Petitioner if there would be heat in the garage.  
Mr. Grilec stated that it would probably eventually be heated.   
 
Board Member Barta asked if it is a concern of the Fire Department that the garage will 
be heated.  Mr. Bruning said that this was not one of the concerns that was raised during 
the course of the staff review process.  The issues that were raised by the Fire Department 
were:  (1) storage materials and (2) square footage.  Mr. Barta asked if, at the time of the 
staff review, was the Fire Department aware that there would be a gas line running out to 
the garage.  Mr. Bruning responded that they most likely were not aware of this intent.   
 
Mr. Grilec stated that he does have a permit to run a gas line to the garage and was told 
by the Building Commissioner that any furnace would have to be a hanging one and meet 
other restrictions in order to be approved.   
 
Mr. Bruning clarified the status of the permit application for a gas line.  Mr. Grilec has 
submitted an application which, if this variance is granted, will be forwarded to the Fire 
Department and Building Department for review.  The permit has not yet been granted. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 
Chairman Cardella then called for anyone in the audience wishing to speak on this matter 
to please step forward. 
 
Chairman Cardella then administered the Oath to those who wished to speak. 
 
Larry Canning, 6348 Scott Ct., one of the Grilec’s neighbors, stated that his home faces 
the back of the Grilec’s garage.  Mr. Canning believes that the garage is beautiful and 
improves his surrounding area and is happy to see it go up.  It does not obstruct his view 
and it is very pleasing to the eyes. 
 



 

4 
ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS  - SEPTEMBER 22, 2011 

Walter Stec, 6349 Barbara Ln., said that his house also faces Ridgeland and his view also 
is of the back of the garage in question.  He agrees completely with Mr. Canning’s 
assessment. 
 
Kurt Latzko, 16919 Forestview Dr., stated that he is a south side neighbor of Mr. Grilec’s 
and he has no problem with the garage.  He appreciates that Mr. Grilec did the work and 
feels that it is an upgrade to the neighborhood.   
 
Mr. Samuelson asked Staff if, when the peak of the roof was measured, was it measured 
from the tip of the peak, or was it measured from the midpoint of the peak?  He was 
informed that the roof was measured from the tip of the peak.   
 
Mr. Samuelson also asked Staff if the Petitioner now exceeds the maximum lot coverage 
for buildings and was informed that he does not.   
 
The questions was asked:  If this situation were to occur again, could there be a fine 
imposed?  Mr. Panfil responded that the fine would go to the home owner and it would 
then become a civil matter between the contractor and the home owner. 
 
Mr. Cardella expressed the view that approval of this variance would not constitute 
setting a precedent since each case that comes before this Board is unique in nature.   
 
Mr. Bruning noted that he has researched back 20 years and has not seen another instance 
where the garage was built higher than specifications.  Therefore, it would be difficult to 
predict the likelihood of a reoccurrence of this situation. 
 
Mrs. Grilec commented that they have lived in this house for 26 years and, rather than 
moving, they have tried to improve their property and make it convenient for them to 
retire there by placing walk-down, rather than drop-down stairs in their garage for easier 
access to storage.   
 
Motion was made by Board Member Dave Samuelson and seconded by Board Member 
Ed Barta to consider recommending to the Village Board the granting of a 1.5’ variance 
to the maximum 18’ allowed garage height to allow for a 19.5’ tall garage for the 
property located at 16913 S. Forestview Dr., Tinley Park, IL, located in the R-4, Single 
Family Residential Zoning District and within the Parkside Subdivision with the 
following stipulations: 
 

(1) That the Petitioner does not operate any type of business out of the garage; 
(2) That there are no living quarters, either temporary or permanent, allowed in the 
        garage;  
(3) That no commercial type of auto repair be run out of the garage; and 
(4) That the storage of materials will have to meet Fire Code safety regulations. 

 
 
Vote by roll call as follows:  Ayes: Ed Barta, Dave Samuelson, Tom Hanna, and 
Chairman Sam Cardella.  Nays:  None.  Abstain:  None. 
Vote 4-0-0. Motion carried. 



 

5 
ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS  - SEPTEMBER 22, 2011 

 
Chairman Cardella informed the Petitioners that their request for the variation to be 
recommended to the Village Board has been approved by the Zoning Board of Appeals.  
The Petitioners must now appear before the Village Board for final approval. 
 
Motion was made by Ed Barta, seconded by Dave Samuelson, to close Public Hearing #1 
and to adjourn the meeting at 8:03 p.m.  


